
 

 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE GLOUCESTERSHIRE GLOUCESTERSHIRE GLOUCESTERSHIRE 

ECONOMIC GROWTH ECONOMIC GROWTH ECONOMIC GROWTH ECONOMIC GROWTH 

JOINT COMMITTEEJOINT COMMITTEEJOINT COMMITTEEJOINT COMMITTEE    

    
10.00 am10.00 am10.00 am10.00 am 

WEDNESDAYWEDNESDAYWEDNESDAYWEDNESDAY    

18 0000 201518 0000 201518 0000 201518 0000 2015 

 

Cabinet Suite Cabinet Suite Cabinet Suite Cabinet Suite ----    Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, Shire Hall, 

GloucesterGloucesterGloucesterGloucester 

 

 

MEETING PAPERS 

 

 
 



 
Published Date Not Specified 
 

 



 

 
 
 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE 

 

TIME: 10.00 am 

DATE: Wednesday 18th March, 2015 

VENUE: Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester 

 
A G E N G A 

 
ITEM TOPIC CONTACT 

1. Apologies   
 

2. Declarations of Interest   
  

To receive declarations by members of  
(a) personal interests (including their nature), and  
(b) prejudicial interests under the Code of Conduct. 

 
 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)  
 To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 December 2014. Jane Cleaver 

Tel: 01452 
425096 

4. Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) Updates (Pages 5 - 26)  
  

To receive update reports on the following aspects of the Strate
Economic Plan (SEP) 

a) Growth Deal  
b) Implementation Plan 
c) Assurance Framework 
d) Monitoring and Evaluation Plans 

 

Pete Carr 
 

5. Project Pipeline development process (Pages 27 - 28)  
  

To receive a report on the SEP project Pipeline 
development process. 

 

Pete Carr 
 

6. Business Rate Pool Strategic Economic Development Fund   
  

To receive a verbal update on the current position of the 
Fund. 

 

Sandra Cowley 
 

7. Combined Authority/ Economic Prosperity Board (Pages 29 - 
38) 

 

  
To consider the initial report prepared by Shared Intelligence. 

Nigel Riglar 
Tel: 01452 
328470 



 
Published Date Not Specified 
 

8. Update Reports   
  

To receive verbal reports on the following matters: 
 
1. Planning and infrastructure – next steps following the Chief 

Executive / Senior Officer Group meeting (Mike Dawson) 
2. Rail vision – progress and next steps (Nigel Riglar) 
3. Dowty-Propellers fire – update / learning (Nigel Riglar) 
 

 
 

9. Future Meeting Dates   
  

To re-arrange the date of the Committee’s next meeting in June 
from Wednesday, 3 June to Thursday, 4 June at 10am. 
 
To note that the Committee is due to meet on the following dates 
in 2015: 
 
Wednesday, 9 September 
Wednesday, 9 December 

Jane Cleaver 
Tel: 01452 
425096 

 

NOTES 

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Cllr Mark Hawthorne, Cllr Patrick Molyneux and 
Cllr Robert Vines  Cllr Paul James, Cllr Steve Jordan, Cllr Christopher Hancock, 
Cllr Geoff Wheeler, and two Board members from LEP. 
 

(b) IN ATTENDANCE – Local Authority Chief Executives and relevant officers 
 

(c) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns �01452 328472 /fax: 425240/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting.  
 

 
GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS 
 

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list. 

 

 

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions. 

 



 

- 1 - 

 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE 

 
MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Friday 5th December, 2014 commencing at 10.00 am at the Cabinet Suite - 
Shire Hall, Gloucester. 

 
 

PRESENT 
MEMBERSHIP: 

 

 Cllr Mark Hawthorne 
Cllr Steve Jordan 
Cllr Patrick Molyneux 
 

Cllr Robert Vines 
Cllr Geoff Wheeler 
 

Substitutes: Cllr Colin Organ 
 

Apologies: Cllr Paul James 

 
11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

12. MINUTES  
 
 
Resolved  
 
That the minutes of the meetings held on 12 September and 31 October 2014 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

13. GROWTH DEAL  
 
 
This report was presented by Mally Findlater, from the LEP. 
 
During a detailed discussion the following points were highlighted: 
 

• The Local Transport Board was likely to continue its work for another 12 to 
18 months when it was anticipated that the monies available would have 
been all distributed.  This Committee would then pick up the monitoring of 
the delivery of projects. 

 

• There was a need for the LEP to identify sufficient resources to ensure that 
the assurance Framework could be completed.  As the Accountable body 
GCC would provide significant resources to support this area and it was 
hoped that a draft version would be available for comments in the near 
future.  

 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 2 - 
 

• The monitoring matrix (copy attached to the signed copy of these minutes) 
should be completed, including the expected outcomes for each agreed 
project, by the Committee’s next meeting in March 2015.  

 

• Advice would be available to the LEP from the LAs on how to ensure that 
work continued on projects during the time of ‘purdah’ prior to next year’s 
General Election. 

 

• A briefing on the progress with the submitted projects for the Growth Deal 
Top-up round would be circulated in due course. 

 

• A detailed report on the formation of a pipeline of projects including the 
criteria for entry would be presented at the Committee’s next meeting. 

 

• It was important that GCC, as the accountable body, had an in-put into the 
scoring system for the assessment of projects, so that any system was 
robust and fit for purpose.  It was noted that the current timescales for 
responses to central government were felt to be too tight and did not allow 
for any proper consideration to be given to projects.  The LEP had made 
representations on this matter   

 

• The assessment process for ‘pipeline projects’ needed to be strategic, long-
term and inclusive of all areas of the county. 

 

• The nominations to the shadow ESIF committee of Cllr Steve Lydon for the 
District Councils and Cllr Shaun Parsons for the County Council were noted. 

 
 
 

14. FUNDING POLICY  
 
 
Sandra Cowley, Stroud District Council, presented the report on the Committee’s 
Funding Policy. 
 
The Committee agreed that it would be helpful for Districts to confirm how money 
distributed from the Business Rates Pool was supporting economic development 
locally. 
 
 

15. THE REFORMATION OF CSPIG  
 
 
Cllr Jordan informed the Committee that unfortunately it had not yet been possible 
to arrange a meeting to discuss this matter. He noted that the discussion in the 
following item may supersede the need for a meeting. 
 
 

16. PLANNING & INFRASTRUCTURE  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 3 - 
 

 
 
Simon Excell, GCC, introduced this report which explained the possible impact of 
the replacement of Section 106 Agreements with Community Infrastructure Levy by 
District councils with regard to the cost and provision of new infrastructure 
associated with new developments. 
 
After a detailed discussion of the possible ramifications, and it becoming clear that 
this area required a co-operative approach across all seven authorities, to allow 
detailed consideration of the many implications, the Committee 
 
Resolved 
 
That the Chief Executives Group be asked to develop proposals for a Memorandum 
of Understanding between all Local Authorities in Gloucestershire which would 
allow the development of Terms of Reference of a Joint Group to lead on the co-
ordination of this area, and reporting to this Committee.  
 

17. GLOUCESTERSHIRE GROWTH HUB  
 
 
The Committee received an interesting presentation from Jeannie Cohen-Brand, 
Commercial Manager at The Growth Hub (Gloucestershire). 
 
It was agreed that a future meeting should receive an updated presentation which 
could show what outcomes had been achieved from the investment made. 
 
 
 
 

18. GLOUCESTERSHIRE LOCAL TRANSPORT BOARD  
 
 
Having been informed that the current member and substitute were willing to 
continue, the Committee 
 
Resolved 
 
That Cllr Paul James (Gloucester City) be nominated as this Committee’s 
representative on the Gloucestershire Local Transport Board, and that Cllr Steve 
Jordon (Cheltenham Borough) be the named substitute; terms of office being from 
March 2015 to March 2017. 
 

19. STRATEGIC RAIL ISSUES  
 
 
Following a discussion on the emerging strategic rail issues, it was agreed that any 
bids made were more likely to be successful if they were backed by a county-wide 
vision, ideally by the drafting of a strategic rail plan. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting 

 
 

- 4 - 
 

 
As an initial step towards this aim, the Chairman agreed that GCC’s response to the 
Network Rail Western Route Study Consultation would be shared.  The Committee 
also welcomed the suggestion that a small officer working group be established at 
the earliest opportunity to scope the approach and associated work. 
 
 

20. FUTURE MEETING DATES  
 
 
The agreed dates for meetings in 2015 were noted. 
 
 

 
CHAIRPERSON 

 
Meeting concluded at 12:10 

 
 

Page 4



GFirst LEP Update for Joint Committee 18
th

 March 2015 

Item 4: Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) Updates  

a) Growth Deal  

 

A further £15M of funding has been secured and was announced on 29
th

 January 2015. This brings 

the total funding secured by GFirst LEP for the county through the Single Local Growth Fund to 

£77.5M to date. This latest funding means that over the lifetime of the Growth Deal (2015-2021) up 

to: 6000 jobs could be create or safeguarded; 200 new homes built; £220m public and private 

investment could be generated.  

Subject to due diligence checks (see Assurance Framework item c) below) the additional funding will 

be invested in the following six project proposals: 

• Promoting the growth of Gloucestershire Airport by improving key infrastructure at the site. 

Allocated £550,000. 

• Investment in the regeneration of the Blackfriars and Quayside areas in Gloucester City 

Centre for domestic and commercial use. Allocated £4.13 million. 

• Support for fledgling agri-tech businesses – high tech incubation facilities to support start-

ups and promote innovation at the Royal Agricultural University. Allocated £2.92 million. 

• Support for retail entrepreneurship – provision of high street incubation space in 

Gloucestershire. Allocated £400k. 

• Further additions to the planned Gloucestershire Renewable Energy, Engineering and 

Nuclear skills centre at Berkeley: A new Cyber Security Training and Conference Centre to 

build Gloucestershire’s skills base in this fast-growing sector. Allocated £3 million. An 

Advanced Renewable Energy Resource Centre delivering STEM skills development, 

experimental research and specialist business and domestic market support in renewables. 

Allocated £4 million. 

Government has confirmed that it is content with the level of detail supplied in the majority of the 

business case proposals but does expect further work to be done on the proposals for 

Gloucestershire Airport and for the Renewables Centre. This work is underway with the LEP and 

project promoters. 

The expectation is there will now be a ‘pause’ on further Growth Deals until the Autumn so the focus 

can remain on taking all the approved business case proposals included in the SEP and for the 

projects listed above through the Assurance Framework processes and into the implementation 

phase. This implementation phase will include the implementation of the funded projects and the 

wider asks of Government that are contained in the Growth Deal. 

b) Implementation Plan 

 

This is the main ‘overview’ document that is shared with Government colleagues to monitor overall 

progress of our Growth Deal. It is updated monthly by LEP staff leads for the funded projects and 

wider asks of Government.  

The current version of the plan is attached as an appendix. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 5



The next version of the document will be edited down slightly to keep it more succinct and 

manageable. 

c) Assurance Framework 

 

In December 2014, Government confirmed that it requires an assurance framework to be developed 

and approved by the LEP Board and Gloucestershire County Council as the accountable body by the 

end of March 2015. It is important to appreciate that it is the framework that needs to be in place by 

then to allow the SLGF funding to flow to GCC. Government does not expect all the processes and 

documents that sit under the framework to be fully developed by end of March 2015. It is envisaged 

that the Assurance Framework will remain a ‘live’ document and that it will require annual review 

once adopted. 

Development of the Assurance Framework is being undertaken by a group of officers and staff from 

Gloucestershire County Council and GFirst LEP and is deliberately incorporating approaches and 

lessons learned from various other funding streams managed in the County (e.g. Gloucestershire 

Infrastructure Investment Fund (GIIF) and the Gloucestershire Local Transport Board (GLTB) ) so that 

the framework is robust and responsive to the changing needs of Government and the Single Local 

Growth Fund. This group will continue to develop the Assurance Framework in preparation for 

approval by the LEP Board and Gloucestershire County Council senior officers via delegated 

authority. 

The Assurance Framework will cover the following and will be published on the GFirst LEP website: 

• LEP Governance and decision making 

• Local authority partnership working 

• Transparent decision making 

• Accountable decision making 

• Ensuring value for money: prioritization; appraisal; business case development; risk 

management 

 

The main processes that the Assurance Framework will incorporate are shown in the accompanying 

flowchart.  

d) Monitoring and Evaluation Plans 

For monitoring purposes, Government has asked LEPs for a set of ‘core metrics’ covering all 

interventions with inputs/outputs reported quarterly and outcomes annually. This will enable 

Government to report overall progress across all 39 LEP areas. LEP staff have drafted an overall plan 

for monitoring the Growth Deal projects and are currently working with project promoters to finalise 

which monitoring metrics will be used with each project. Each funded project will be required to 

monitor and report on these metrics and this requirement will be linked into the funding 

agreements to be set up between GCC and the project promoters. 

Alongside regular monitoring, LEPs are expected to prepare Evaluation Plans setting out how they 

intend to evaluate SLGF projects in the future. The Evaluation Plan needs to be prepared in 

accordance with the guidance from Government. It will play a key role in demonstrating the impact 

and cost effectiveness of the Gloucestershire Growth Deal as well as helping to secure additional 

Single Local Growth Funding in the future. 

Page 6



It is worth highlighting a number of key points from the Government guidance: 

• LEPs are advised to focus on producing a small number of high quality evaluations rather 

than being comprehensive in coverage, with a view to furthering Government and partners’ 

understanding of ‘what works’.  

• When selecting projects, LEPs are advised to focus on those that are: i) large in value; ii) can 

be robustly evaluated with a feasible counterfactuals established; and iii) interesting or 

innovative ‘demonstrator’ projects where the research base is less well developed.  

• Evaluations proposed should be ‘proportionate and selective, taking into consideration the 

scale, value and scope of an intervention’.  

• Evaluation Plans should consider projects with both pre-committed and competitive 

funding. 

Recognising that Growth Deals are large and complex and resources are limited, Government has 

left it to LEPs’ discretion to decide how many evaluations they wish to undertake. Moreover, LEPs 

must also decide the types of evaluation they wish to undertake for each intervention. 

Consistent with the HMG Magenta Book Guidance on Evaluation, the LEP Evaluation Plan guidance 

identifies four different types of evaluation: 

• Process evaluation – which focuses on evaluating the process for implementing the project 

or programme.  

• Theory-based evaluation – which focuses on testing the logic model/theory of change 

underpinning the project or programme.  

• Outcomes evaluation – testing whether outcomes moved in the desired direction often 

including non-project-specific contextual influences.  

• Impact evaluation – asking whether the intervention had any impact on observed outcomes 

and assessing cost effectiveness/value for money.  

The choices of evaluation will depend on the nature of the project and the stage at which it is being 

evaluated. Impact evaluation would generally be the preferred option but may not always be 

feasible. As well as evaluating projects, LEPs can also choose to evaluate other elements of the 

Growth Deal such as freedoms and flexibilities. The Plan must set out a realistic evaluation 

programme which meets the SMART criteria of being specific, measurable, achievable, relevant and 

time bound. 

The guidance puts more emphasis on the evaluation of individual interventions but leaves open the 

option for LEPs to group similar interventions together to evaluate if they so wish, and whether to 

evaluate the Deal as a whole.  

GFirst LEP has submitted an initial draft of the Evaluation Plan and in February 2015 received 

feedback from Government about this. The LEP is also commissioning some additional external 

consultancy to finalise the Evaluation Plan. 

 

Evaluation of the Gloucestershire Growth Deal will allow Government, GFirst LEP, the 

Gloucestershire local authorities and local stakeholders to better understand the impact of projects, 

value for money and the impact of the Growth Deal itself. This will allow us collectively to 

demonstrate success in the county. If members of the Joint Committee agree in principle to 

providing some of its combined resources to support the evaluation of the Gloucestershire Growth 

Deal then GFirst LEP staff and Council officers will work together to develop and present a proposal 

Page 7



to future meetings of both the Joint Committee and the GFirst LEP Board. 

GFirst LEP requests that the Joint Committee:  

i) notes the importance of the Evaluation Plan and longer term evaluation activity 

in securing additional SLGF funding 

ii) in principle, agrees to provide some of its combined resources to support the 

evaluation of the Gloucestershire Growth Deal 

 

Page 8



GFirst LEP Assurance Framework: Growth Fund Project Assessment and Fund Management Process                                                     

 

 

DRAFT   

SEPGov 5March15  

SEP AF chart 5March15 

 
 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2. Initial Assessment Process 

Project Scrutiny Panel (including Accountable body input)  

building on GIIF Investment Panel 

Initial sift – eligibility criteria, technical input 

 

1. Business Case Proposal Submission to LEP 

Pipeline projects from SEP or any new proposals 

4. Business Case Refinement/Due Diligence Work 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5. Due Diligence Assessment and Recommendations  
External Appraiser - Recommendations 

Project Scrutiny Panel – Recommendations – including Accountable 

body input 

Transport Projects 

• Clarify outstanding questions from 

Business Case proposal stage to 

complete Strategic Outline Case 

(committed schemes only)  

• Submit Appraisal Specification Report  

• Outline Business Case and VfM 

statement for schemes with a total 

value of >£5M only – GLTB sign off 

• Full Business Case and VfM 

statement (proportionate) 

Skills Projects 

• Complete Skills Funding 

Agency Business Case 

process 

• If necessary: clarify 

outstanding questions to 

complete Due Diligence 

template and VfM 

statement 

 

Other Growth Projects 

• Complete Due 

Diligence template 

and VfM statement 

 

 

7. Funding Award  

Accountable Body (Gloucestershire 

County Council) issue Funding 

Agreement 

P
ro

je
ct se

le
ctio

n
   

P
ro

je
ct a

p
p

ro
v

a
l a

n
d

 fu
n

d
in

g
 a

w
a

rd
 p

ro
ce

ss 

Progress Reporting –  

Monitoring and Evaluation  

A
cco

u
n

ta
b

le
 B

o
d

y
 R

o
le

 –
 G

lo
u

ce
ste

rsh
ire

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
cil 

3.  LEP Board selection with GEGJC*advice/recommendations 
(*Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee) 

6.  LEP Board Approval with GEGJC*advice/recommendations 

(GLTB Approval for GLTB schemes) 

KEY Red outline – decision point 

Green outline – input from Project Promoters 

Blue outline– GCC Accountable Body 

Growth Fund 

eligibility criteria 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



GFirst LEP Growth Deal Implementation Plan 
HMG Implementation Champion for GFirst LEP: ? 

HMG Relationship Manager for GFirst LEP: Katie Jenkins, BIS and Alice Darley, DCLG 

Summary 

 

The GFirst LEP Growth Deal was published on 7th July 2014. It sets out how the Government and GFirst LEP will 

deliver the Gloucestershire Strategic Economic Plan. This Implementation Plan is a joint document that sets out 

how, together, GFirst LEP and the Government will make the Growth Deal operational through clearly identified 

activities, responsibilities and milestones, with the aim that the Growth Deal is fully ready for delivery by April 

2015. 

 

This Implementation Plan will sit alongside a suite of products which detail the joint commitments between 

GFirst LEP and the Government, including: 

 

-A funding agreement between the Government and Gloucestershire County Council (GCC), the accountable 

body acting for and on behalf GFirst LEP; 

-An Assurance Framework  that establishes how GFirst LEP will ensure value for money across the range of 

interventions; 

-A Monitoring & Evaluation Plan that sets out how the Growth Deal will be measured, reported and evaluated; 

-A Strategic Communications Plan that sets out how the LEP and Government will work together on 

communications activity. 

 

It is our intention, wherever possible, to build on process and documents that LEPs already have in place. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wider 

Offer 

Action / Milestones: Lead LEP Lead HMG RAG rating 

[Key milestones associated with wider offer, with dates] 
 

Skills Group, planning and investments 

 

Actions : 

• Consider skills implications as part of decision taking on 

growth strategies 

• Articulate and evidence skills priorities and communicate 

them to the FE and skills sector 

• Engage the FE and skills sector in key strategic partnerships  

• Work with business and the skills system to realise private 

investment 

• Review ESIF skills priorities with group once finalised with 

SFA. 

• Next meeting 13
th

 April 2015. 

 
Milestones :  

• Establish Skills Group – First meeting 30/07/14 and 

meetings quarterly. Next meeting delayed from October 

2014 to January 2015. 

 

• Skills Group first meeting to review skills data from 

Marchmont –  31/08/14 

 

 

 

Sarah Danson 

& David Owen 

 

 

 

Sara Marshall 

& Sarita 

Walker (SFA) 

 

 

Green ↑ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Actions: 

 

• Review SIF skills priorities with SFA to ensure they can be 

taken forward to support the Growth Deal – 30/09/14. SFA 

& LEP meetings have taken place but still not fully clear 

until national operational programme is signed off (shifted 

from Dec 2014 to June 2015). 

 

• Decision not to go for 6
th

 Feb deadline for first PIDs. 

 

• Have requested internal timelines from SFA to clarify when 

deadline for second round of PIDs will be. This is now 

needed urgently. 

  Amber = 

 

Page 11



 

Milestones: 

• version 4 of SFA MoU – awaiting release by SFA 

• Pre procurement information and documentation received 

28/11/2014.   

• Completion of Project Initiation document 26/1/2015. 

• Confirmation from SFA of deadline for second round of 

PIDs 

 

Vice Principals Meeting 

Bi-monthly. This may be replaced by a combination of David Owen’s 

meetings with the college principals and the Skills Group. 

DO discussing this and option of having a specific post to link FE and 

LEP, funded by colleges with college princpals. 

 

  Amber = 

 

Actions: 

 

Skills Funding Agency (SFA) will support the process to ensure that 

provision meets local priorities and is responsive to local needs via: 

• Procurement of new provision 

• Advice if provision not suitable – Summer 2014 (not yet 

received) 

• Advice on how LEPs can influence local skills budgets – 

Summer 2014 (not yet received) 

• Accountability: Providers will be required through their 

funding agreements with the Agency to explain to LEPs 

details of their provision and planning – when? 

 

  Red = 

Local skills needs and data 

 

Actions: 

 

• SFA to provide LEP with a data set to update on provision 

delivered in Gloucestershire – Summer 2014 

• FE/HE providers have collated details of their provision 

against SEP priorities 

• LEP needs ongoing support from SFA on the use of the 

data cube 

 

• Data being supplied via data cube but there is still the need 

for staff resource for ongoing interrogation and use of the 

data cube. 

 

   

Amber = 

 

FE Capital 

 

Actions: 

• Review of FE capital projects with SFA Nov 2014 (with 

Mark Harvey) 

• Mark Harvey has sent follow-up details and proformas. 

• Develop template for funding approval process based on 

SFA template and agreed with accountable body – Nov 

2014 

• Inform GREEN & STEM project teams about this process 

 

Milestones: 

• FE Skills Capital documents reviewed and revised 

• GCC as accountable body reviewed and amended FE Skills 

capital documents 

• FE Skills Capital documents updated to meet SFA and GCC 

requirements and sent to project sponsors for GREEN and 

STEM. 

• FE Skills Capital documents completed by project sponsors 

and returned to LEP and forwarded to GCC and SFA. 

• FE capital applications for GREEN and STEM to be 

Sarah Danson  Amber = 

 

Page 12



submitted by 13
th

 February 2015. 

 
STEM 

 

Actions: 

• Provide guidelines for proposals to FE colleges – December 

2014 

• (Usual FE Capital process – confirmed Nov ) 

• FE colleges to submit combined proposal to LEP by Dec 

2014. 

• FE college to submit complete application forms by end Jan 

2015 

• Review of proposals LEP & SFA – Jan 2015 

• Building/equipping of STEM centres at Cirencester and 

Hartpury from March 2015 to August 2015 

• Delivery at C & H starts Sept 2015 

• Building/equipping of STEM centre at Gloscol starts Sept 

2015 and completes July 2016 

• NB Dates to be confirmed following submission and review 

of proposals. 

 

• SFA has explained that a collaborative bid across the 

colleges will have to be done through a collaborative 

strategy and individual bids from FE colleges.  

 

Milestones: 

• Collaborative strategy and individual FE capital bids to be 

completed by end of January 2015. 

 

 

Sarah Danson 
  

Amber = 

 

Nuclear Industrial Strategy 

 

Actions: 

• Continued engagement with Government re. the Nuclear 

Industrial Strategy via the Hinkley Strategic Development 

Forum including: 

• agreement on governance, strategy and delivery models  

 

• Actions: Strategy being developed through HSDF. Ongoing 

exchange between LEPS on issues concerning nuclear 

strategy. 

 

Milestones: 

• EDF to make Final Investment Decision for development at 

Hinkley expected by year end 2014. 

 

• Hinkley SDF meeting quarterly with MB attending. HSDF 

role may broaden once further decisions have been made. 

HSDF developing suppl;y chain and learning from this may 

help in future. 

 

• MB & SD met with HOSW 16
th

 Jan for inward investment 

strategy across South West relating to nuclear. This is now 

progressing in a collaborative way utilizing HoSW staff 

resource brought in (funded to end of March). 

 

• MB met with Corinne Matthews of HoSW 20
th

 Jan to 

discuss a cross LEP nuclear strategy. MB clarified GREEN 

project aims to her. 

 

 

Martin Bruton 

 

 Green ↑ 

Links between education and business 

 

Actions: 

• GFirst LEP will facilitate stronger linkage between 

Sarah Danson 

and Katherine 

Johnson 

 

 Green ↑ 

Page 13



education providers and local businesses. 

 

Milestones: 

• Programme of Education Business Partnership (EBP) 

activities across the year established and published – 

September 2014. This has been delayed due to staff long-

term sickness. Revised for January 2015. 

 

• Education and business links activities involving LEP sector 

groups identified and focused objectives related to SEP 

and SIF – October 2014 

 

• Education and business links proposals in SIF Strategy 

agreed with SFA – October 2014.  

 

• Development and review of ESIF proposals taking place 

part of Project Initiation Documentation preparations aim 

to complete 26
th

 January 2015. 

 

• Review success or otherwise of the LEPs that have been 

funded to implement Enterprise Advisers. 

 
National Careers Service and Jobs created through LGF-funded 

projects 

 

Actions: 

 

• Alignment of our offer to the National Careers Service 

(NCS) providers ahead of the new service’s roll-out 

• Gfirst Employment & Skills team enhanced contract 

established with Adviza as the NCS prime contractor for 

Gloucestershire – September 2014 

• Use of LMI tool agreed with Gloucestershire County 

Council – October 2014 

• Government to help ensure local employer priorities are 

fed into operations of the new NCS providers in 

Gloucestershire – when? 

 

• Concerns about Adviza schools liaison role to link schools 

and businesses – potential to cut-across other LEP and EBP 

work. 

 

Jason Dunsford & 

Monique Smith 

 

  

Amber = 

 

 

Actions: 

 

• Jobs created by LGF-funded projects made available to 

local unemployed people (Social Value Act). 

• Local Work Programme providers kept informed about 

jobs created through Growth Deal – ongoing (monthly) 

 

Peter Carr 

 
 Amber = 

 

Growth Hub 

 

Actions: 

 

• Government will provide £250k revenue funding to the LEP 

for growth hub business support coordination  

 

• GFirst LEP will provide a clear model for coordinating and 

simplifying business support joining up national, local, 

public and private support 

 

Milestones: 

• Opening of Growth Hub – October 2014 

Mally Findlater 

and David Owen 

 

 Amber = 

 

 

Page 14



• Adoption of national helpline offer –November 2014- 

navigators signposting to tier one & two. Low numbers 

currently. Being addressed by Commercial Manager with 

GH navigators. 

 

• Embedding of national and local business support partners 

(UKTI, TSB, MAS, etc.) – November 2014 

 

• The Growth Hub actively promoting all forms of business 

support available in their area, aligning with the Business is 

GREAT campaign and provide a diagnostic and signposting 

service for all businesses. BIS diagnostic tool prototype 

being reviewed by GH guides who will continue to feed 

into the development of the tool. We will retain the option 

to use the tool. – April 2015 

 

• The Growth Hub is engaged in a comprehensive 

simplification programme in line with national guidance. 

Project Exec to review this Feb and March 2015.  – April 

2015 

 

• The Growth Hub has committed to a common evaluation 

framework to measure performance, customer satisfaction 

and impact, in line with national guidance on Growth Deal 

monitoring and evaluation. Exploring opportunities to 

extend HEFCE Growth Hub evaluation plans to cover BIS 

and Growth Deal requirements. 

Outline M&E plan – April 2015 

Actual M&E activity – July 2015 

 
 

Actions: 

 

• UK Trade and Investment (UKTI) to communicate its 

strategic priorities to LEPs UKTI to work more closely with 

LEP and help build capability to secure more inward 

investment 

 

• Currently waiting for UKTI to confirm ‘core’ offer and 

ERDF-funded offer as well as contractors/local delivery 

partners. 

 

Milestones: 

 

• Local UKTI manager (Rob Harvey) informed about Growth 

Hub priorities and work programme – October 2014 

• Local UKTI manager has briefed Growth Hub staff on UKTI 

offer and referral processes 

• Business Support providers agreed a common approach to 

signposting and referrals. ‘Buddy’ system becoming 

universal practice between Guides and advisers. 

• Most recent meeting 28
th

 January 2015 – shared work 

programme for the year ahead under development 

 

  Amber = 

 

 

 

 

Actions: 

 

• Innovate UK (formerly The Technology Strategy Board 

(TSB)) to support GFirst LEP in developing its Growth Hub 

and explore how LEPs can help drive up local business 

awareness and engagement in Technology Strategy Board 

programmes and initiatives 

 

Milestones: 

  Green = 

 

Page 15



• Local TSB manager (Peter Dirken) informed about Growth 

Hub priorities and work programme – October 2014 

 

• Local TSB manager (Peter Dirken) has briefed Growth Hub 

staff on TSB offer and referral processes – November 2014 

 

• TSB adviser (Peter Dirken) providing updates to GH team, 

including wider offer. Joint initiatives for promotion being 

developed – Jan 2015 

 
Tourism and support for the Gloucestershire DMOs 

 

Actions: 

 

• Visit England will support the LEP’s efforts to strengthen 

the tourism sector in Gloucestershire.   

 

• Visit England will continue to engage with the area 

(Cotswolds DMO and Forest of Dean DMP) and the agreed 

structure. 

 

Milestones: 

• VE join representative joins group establishing tourism 

DMO – August 2014 

 

• VE provides example documents (mem & arts, case 

studies, etc.) to inform local DMO implementation – 

September 2014 

 

• Discussions between ST and Defra have helped clarify 

EAFRD funding requirements for tourism. ST will inform 

the two DMOs about this when confirmed with the ESIF 

committee. 

 

• Wye Valley and FoD Tourism Association DMO is currently 

preparing destination management plan. Aiming for Spring 

2015 completion.  

 

Sarah Tyler 

 
 Green = 

Growth Zone 

 

Actions: 

 

• GFirst LEP will work with local partners, the Homes and 

Communities Agency, and the Highways Agency specifically 

to explore the potential for development at junctions 9 

and 10 of the M5. 

 

• J9: Negotiations proceeding re MOD site etc. Aschurch site 

has been included in shortlist of 29 by DCLG as a “Housing 

Zone”. List of final 10 to announced shortly  

 

• Concerns about mixed messages at a strategic and 

operational level about delays in the timing of availability 

of MOD site. 

 

• J10: HA say that 4 way at J10 unlikely to appear on Final 

Route Strategy List to be published March 2015. HA need 

evidence of Business Demand. JCS/GCC has commissioned 

traffic modelling for JCS. LEP will build on this when 

completed based on SEP proposals. Ongoing dialogue with 

JCS. “Masterplan” of J10 area mooted to include all 

stakeholders including HA, JCS, Landowners/LEP etc 

 

• JCS statement of co-operation has been reworked (v7). LEP 

Mike Curran 

 
  

 

 

Amber = 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Red = 

 

Page 16



construction and infrastructure group has rejected this. 

Statement of common ground is being developed by 

members of LEP construction and infrastructure group for 

presentation to the LEP Board and JCS Executives. 

 

• JCS inspector appointed and inspection expected in April 

2015. 

 
A417 Missing Link 

 

Actions: 

 

• The Highways Agency commits to working with 

Gloucestershire County Council to investigate whether a 

deliverable solution to the problems on the A417 Missing 

Link can be found.  

 

Milestones: 

• GCC-commissioned work to inform a future business case 

completed and report communicated summer 2014 

 

• Ongoing work to support reinstatement of The Brown 

Route (The Loop) into the roads programme. Target date 

March 2015. 

 

• Highways Agency investigation into lower cost options 

completed and report communicated summer 2014 

 

• Outcomes of above communicated to HA to inform any 

future business cases that may emerge from Stage 2 of the 

Highways Agency's Route Strategy process – March 2015 

 

• Despite Autumn Statement HA say any delivery of A417 

solution not in current funding programme to 2021. 

Meanwhile interim work can be done on environmental 

conditions around the site. Fundamental changes in the 

structure of HA itself may have an impact.  

 

Mike Curran, LEP 

Amanda Lawson-

Smith, GCC 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Green 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Red 

 

Wider work with the Highways Agency 

 

Actions: 

• Through its Route Strategies, the Highways Agency will 

engage the Local Enterprise Partnership in better 

understanding the challenges and opportunities associated 

with the network and to develop evidence based long-

term plans  

 

• GFirst LEP and partners agree that the LEP will take a more 

proactive role in consultation on long-term strategic road 

network planning and provide a coordinating role between 

constituent local authorities 

 

Milestones: 

• HA provide named contact (regional director). Name 

provided 

• The Highways Agency Growth and Economic Development 

Group formed and operating – Autumn 2015?. Formation 

Awaited 

• Quarterly liaison meetings between HA/GCC/LEP 

 

In place, active and informative in providing a better understanding 

of road network challenges, opportunities & solutions 

 

Mike Curran, LEP 

Amanda Lawson-

Smith, GCC 

 

  

 

Green = 

 

 

Network Rail: Long Term Planning Process [ LTPP ] Mike Curran, LEP   

Page 17



 

Actions: 

 

The Department for Transport and Network Rail commit to more 

proactive engagement of the LEP in:  

• Western Route Study under LTPP  

• rail franchise specification  

• getting Train Operating Companies to continue and 

enhance their engagement with LEPs 

 

• GFirst LEP and partners agree that the LEP will take a more 

proactive role in consultation on long-term rail planning 

and franchise specification; and provide a coordinating role 

between constituent local authorities 

• GCC have the clear lead role in the strategy for this area. 

LEP work closely with, and provide support to, GCC in all 

Rail matters  

 

Milestones: 

• Publication of Draft Rail Study for consultation by 13 

October 2014 

Done 

• All consultation feedback by 9 January 2015 

Done 

• Publication of final Rail Strategy by 31 March 2015 

On target 

• Agreed Gloucestershire Rail Strategy in LTP3 by 30 

September 2015 

 

Rob Niblett, GCC 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Green= 

 

Local transport priorities 

 

Actions: 

Progress the development and delivery of the six priority transport 

schemes identified by the Gloucestershire Local Transport Body          

[ GLTB ] that are fundable within available pre-allocated Local 

Growth Fund resources. 

 

Milestones: 

• Strategic Outline Case (SOC) approval Dec 14 to May 15 

• Feasibility work:                                        Jan 15 to Aug 15 

• Outline Business Case approval             May 15 to May 16 

• Acquisition of Statutory Powers            Sep 15 to Jun 16 

• Detailed Design                                         Mar 15 to Jul 16 

• Procurement                                              Dec 15 to Oct16 

• Full Business Case Approval                    Jul 15 to Apr 17 

• Start Construction                                     Sep 15 to Sep17 

• Complete Construction                            Jun 16 to Mar18 

 

6 schemes reviewed at GLTB meetings on 15 Jan and 5 Feb 2015 

 

Benhall scheme proposal now has a £200 to 900k shortfall because 

of additional requirements. This is a GLTB issue to resolve. 

 

Mike Curran, LEP 

Amanda Lawson-

Smith, GCC 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Green = 

 

Broadband 

GFirst LEP will support extension of superfast broadband coverage 

to:  

• 90% of UK premises by 2016, via existing broadband 

projects led by Gloucestershire County Council 

• 95% of UK premises by 2017 by working with local 

partners, including Gloucestershire County Council to help 

ensure match funding is in place for the next round of 

projects 

 

Milestones: 

Mally Findlater, 

LEP 

Claire Edwards, 

GCC 

 

 Green 

 

Page 18



 

 

 
Housing 

• GFirst LEP and local planning authorities commit to 

working together to deliver the housing provided for in 

Local Plans 

 

Mike Curran and 

Pete Carr 

 

  

• The Government Property Unit will engage with the LEP to 

examine the potential to release government land and 

property to promote local economic growth and / or 

housing development 

Meeting arranged on 11
th

 Feb 2015  

 

Mike Curran   

Amber = 

• The Homes & Communities Agency will work with the local 

authorities and LEP to help identify and to best use their 

resources to acquire, de-risk and bring to market surplus 

public sector land 

Initial meetings held. Ongoing dialogue and next meeting 

3
rd

 February. 

 

Mike Curran   

Green = 

 • The Homes & Communities Agency will work with the LEP 

to develop a Joint Investment Plan and agree priorities for 

investment in Gloucestershire. 

 

Mike Curran  Red = 

 

 Milestones: 

• Senior Officers group identify housing lead/s for Joint 

Committee - tbc 

• LEP and affordable housing providers workshop. 

Completed November 2014 

   

Amber = 

 

Green ↑ 

 

 Junction 9 

 

Actions: 

• The Homes & Communities Agency will liaise with LEP and 

local partners to coordinate its resources to expedite 

redevelopment of the Ashchurch site subject to the 

Ministry of Defence's agreement. 

 

Ashchurch site has been included in shortlist of 29 by DCLG 

as a “Housing Zone”. List of final 10 to announced shortly. 

 

Tewkesbury BC has confirmed that it has identified 

stakeholders to sit on J9 steering group. LEP awaiting 

further details. 

 

Concerns raised with LEP about apparent delays in 

planning issues for outlet village at J9. 

 

Milestones: 

Check with Mike Dawson at Tewkesbury BC 

 

Mike Curran 

 
  

 

 

Amber ↓ 

 

 Forest of Dean regeneration 

 

Actions: 

The Homes & Communities Agency will offer assistance and 

guidance to the LEP and councils as they develop their plans for the 

regeneration of the Forest of Dean. 

 

Milestones: 

Check with Peter Hibberd at FoD DC 

 

   

 

Amber = 

Page 19



Key 

Project 

Milestones 

 

[Summary of key project milestones – needs to be proportional to reflect size of 

project] 

m 

 

 

 

Timescale RAG 

 

 

 

 

Growth Hub 

UoG Business School 

High level project plan and milestones to be supplied by UoG for January 2015 

update of this Implementation Plan. 

 

 Red = 

 

 

Growth Hub spokes 

Gfirst LEP currently recruiting a project manager to drive this work. From March 

2015. 

Plan for location of Growth Hub spokes confirmed and published – April 2015 

Building/equipping of first Growth Hub spokes – July 2015 

Opening of first Growth Hub spokes – September 2015 

Building/equipping of remaining Growth Hub spokes – ? 2015 

Opening of remaining Growth Hub spokes – ? 2015 

 

 Red = 

 

 

GREEN 

• Suitable milestones agreed with Kevin Hamblin and SGS team. Completed. MB met 

AS 30/09/14. 

 

• Andy has sent in a project plan showing milestones for project. Application for 

planning permission was submitted 25/11/14. (ahead of planned date 0f 2/12/14) 

 

• Business engagement event/launch took place 23
rd

 January 2015. Event well 

attended. Review meeting to be confirmed and to consider further events to inform 

stakeholders. 

 

• Meeting took place on 9/1/15. Event content confirmed. MB to liaise with Katy 

McCarthy for LEP support for event. 

 

• Need to ensure that SGS keep MB informed of all developments as a matter of 

course rather than MB requesting info. 

 

• SFA visit to site planned for 11/12/14.  FE capital application to be discussed at this 

meeting.  Submission date for FE capital to be confirmed following this meeting. 

 

• Meeting occurred. Awaiting confirmation of our amendments to this form from SFA. 

• Further meeting with SGS on 12/1/15 to discuss SFA funding application form. 

 

• Latest project plan available from Martin Bruton at GFirst LEP. 

 

Milestones 

• FE Skills Capital documents reviewed and revised 

• GCC as accountable body reviewed and amended FE Skills capital documents 

• FE Skills Capital documents updated to meet SFA and GCC requirements and sent to 

project sponsors for GREEN and STEM. 

• FE Skills Capital documents completed by project sponsors and returned to LEP and 

forwarded to GCC and SFA. 

• FE capital applications for GREEN and STEM to be submitted by 13
th

 February 2015. 

• Clarification meeting with SGS, GCC and other project sponsors to explain assurance 

framework requirements, monitoring, evaluation, etc. 

 

 

 

 

 Green = 

 

 
Enablers for Growth: Transport infrastructure 

 
 Amber 

Page 20



Agree suitable milestones with Amanda Lawson-Smith – Mike Curran 

 

 

Condition

s 

attached 

to Grant  
 

Condition Timescale 
Lead 

HMG 

Lead 

LEP 

RAG 

Assurance Framework  

Ensure value for money by developing robust processes that will guide local 

decision-making. This will include agreeing an assurance framework with the 

Government by September 2014, building on existing local and national 

frameworks 

 

• Review draft assurance framework guidance (v4) from BIS with GCC 

colleagues, Joint Committee and LGT colleagues and provide feedback 

to enable specification for local Assurance Framework to be prepared. 

Completed. 

 

• GCC to take part in accountable body workshop run by BIS to ensure 

all requirements are clear. Completed. 

 

• Complete content plan for assurance framework based on 

Government guidance (Oct. 2014), GCC accountable body 

requirements and appropriate revisions to the existing GLTB 

Assurance Framework. Outline content plan prepared by CE and 

circulated December 2014. Plan reviewed and Growth Deal 

Governance Group set up to meet fortnightly to complete preparation 

of the assurance framework, sign-off arrangements, etc. Next meeting 

3
rd

 February. 

 

• Review draft assurance framework with LEP Board, GCC, Joint 

Committee and LGT colleagues and provide feedback to enable final 

version to be prepared. 

 

• Approve and adopt assurance framework 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

December 

2014 

 

 

 

January 

2015 

 

 

 

January 

2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

February 

2015 

 

 

 

March 2015 

 

 

 

 

 
Pete Carr  

(LEP) and 

Nigel 

Riglar/Cl

aire 

Edwards 

(GCC) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Amber 

↑ 

Outputs 2015/16 
Indicative 

16/17 

Indicative 

17/18 

Indicative 

18/19 – 20/21 

 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Annual Annual Annual 

Spend Profile  [£ figure] [£ figure] [£ figure] [£ figure] 

Jobs 
[a narrow band covering the year] [slightly wider 

band] 

[a slightly wider 

band] 

[a wide band] 

Housing 
 

 

   

Leverage 
 

 

   

Roads 
 

 

   

Land / Property 
 

 

   

Business Support 
 

 

   

Skills 
 

 

   

Other 1 
 

 

   

Other 2 
 

 

   

Note: To be filled in at 

the plan level – not 

individual projects 

Page 21



 

Governance 

 

Strengthen governance by ensuring investment decisions are robust and 

represent good value for money, delivery of agreed actions, clarifying how the 

Local Transport Body (LTB) role will be delivered within the LEP structure and 

increasing collaboration and joint work between the councils. 

• (See Assurance Framework) actions above 

 

 

 

   

 

Delivery Management 

 

Gfirst LEP Board paper being prepared to explain to Board the delivery 

management structures and processes. (Feb 2015 for March 2015 Board 

meeting). This will include the role of the LEP Board, individual LEP Board 

members on each project board, LEP staff on each project board, cycles of 

meeting and reporting into LEP Board by each project board, etc. 

 
March 2015 

 

  
David 

Owen 

and 

Pete 

Carr 

(LEP) 

 

Amber 

 

Risk Management 

 

Programme & Project Risk Registers 

 

GFirst LEP recognises the need for effective risk management systems and 

procedures to ensure the early identification, assessment and mitigation of risks 

that may emerge during implementation of our Growth Deal. We are managing 

risk by taking a pragmatic approach involving creation and maintenance of a 

Risk Register based upon the following model:- 

 

Identi

fy 

Risk 

Impact 

Score 

Probabilit

y Score 

Risk 

Priority 

Score 

Gross 

Risk 

Level 

Mitigatin

g Action 

Net Risk 

Level 

Brief 

descri

ption 

of risk 

identi

fied 

 

1 = Low 

4 = High 

 

1= 

Unlikely 

4 = Likely 

Impact  

x  

Probabilit

y 

1 to 4: 

Low 

5 to 7: 

Mediu

m 

8 and 

over: 

High 

Brief 

descriptio

n of 

mitigating 

action 

Assessmen

t of Net 

Risk Level 

following 

mitigation 

action 

 

Using this model we will assess and mitigate risks as they are identified, and 

monitor those categorised as Medium or High in order to reduce them at a Net 

Risk Level. 

 

We have drafted a Programme Risk Register together with individual Project 

Risk Registers and these are being reviewed by the Gfirst LEP project leads and 

the project sponsors in order to gather as much information as possible on the 

risks and mitigation prior to April 2015. All the risk registers will be regularly 

reviewed and up-dated as part of our Growth Deal implementation and the 

Assurance Framework (see above) will explain how these risk registers will be 

updated and reviewed, by whom and when. 

 

 

 

 

 

March 2015 

 

  

 

 

 
Pete Carr  

(LEP) 

 

 

 

 

Amber 

 

Communications 

 

Communicate the ongoing outputs and outcomes of the Deal to the local 

community and stakeholders by publishing the Growth Deal and reporting 

regularly, and publically, on their progress to implement the strategy, ensuring 

that local people understand how Government money is being spent via the 

Growth Deal, and what the benefits are for them and the area.  

• Growth Deal announcements for initial Growth Deal and extension 

(Jan 2015) promoted to local media 

• GFirst LEP marketing strategy has been refreshed  and will support 

the Growth Deal comms activity. 

 

The Cities and Local Growth Unit will continue to work with the LEPs on 

communications activities, and help make the links with other Government 

 

 

February 

2015 

   

Page 22



communications teams. 

 

 

Monitoring and Evaluation 

Ensure implementation and demonstrate success, by accepting the funding 

agreement, and by tracking progress against milestones and agreed core metrics 

and outcomes in line with a monitoring and evaluation framework. This will 

include agreeing monitoring metrics and reporting arrangements with the 

Government by September 2014. The LEP will also produce an evaluation plan 

for the projects contained in the Deal before April 2015. 

 

Draft Evaluation Form to BIS January 2015 

Revised Draft Evaluation Form to be circulated Mid Feb 2015 

Final Version of Evaluation Form to be agreed with BIS – April 2015 

Detail and financing of evaluations to be agreed with partners 

 

Milestones, Metrics and Outcomes to be agreed with all project sponsors – End 

Feb 2015 

Reporting mechanisms to be agreed with all Sponsors – End Feb 2015 

Metrics to be agreed with BIS – early March 2015 

 

April 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Page 23



Projects Spend Profile  
(For Quarterly Funded LEPs Only) 

2015/16 16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 

Project Name Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Annual Annual Annual Annual Annual 

          

Project A £w £x £y £z £aa £bb £cc £dd £ee 

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

          

Total          

Note: This table would only be for those LEPs whose Deal 

Document states they will be funded quarterly (rather 

than annually) and must seek HMG permission to switch 

funding to alternative projects. 

P
a
g
e
 2

4



 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Item 5: SEP project Pipeline development process 

The six projects expected to be funded (assuming they progress through the due diligence stage) have 

been reported on in the update on the Growth Deal. 

The remaining project business case proposals that were submitted to GFirst LEP for possible inclusion 

in the Growth Deal have now been ‘put on hold’ whilst the business case proposals for the selected 

projects progress into the due diligence stage of the assurance framework. Project promoters for these 

additional proposals have been informed that their project proposals will not be included in the current 

Growth Deal and they have been informed about the key criteria used to select projects and where they 

were ranked in the assessment process. Some of these project proposals may be taken forward and 

developed further in late Summer/Autumn 2015, once details of the next round of Growth Deal funding 

become clearer. 

On 10
th

 March there was a meeting of all of the Gloucestershire local authorities and GFirst LEP, 

facilitated by Shared Intelligence, to consider how a wider ‘pipeline’ of projects can be developed and 

managed. This is an important development and will hopefully lead to support for and access to 

additional funding streams for a wider range of priorities across the county that do not necessarily fit 

the narrower economic growth criteria of the Single Local Growth Fund. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

i 

 

 

  

DEVOLUTION AND GOVERNANCE 

Next Steps in Gloucestershire 

January 2015 
Agenda Item 7

Page 29



 

ii 

 

1 Introduction 

1.1 This report is intended to prompt a discussion about how the councils and local enteprise 

partnership In Gloucestershire could capitalise on the current move to devolve powers from 

central central government and national agencies to a local level. It explores in particular the 

opportunties offered by Combined Authorities (CAs) and Economic Prospertity Boards 

(EPBs), building on the foundation provided by the county’s recently established Economic 

Growth Joint Committee. 

1.2 The report draws on three main sources of evidence: 

• A brief review of key documentation on CAs and ESBs
1
; 

• Telephone interviews with the leader or chief executive of each of the 

councils in Gloucestershire and the chief executive of the LEP; 

• Brief discussions with senior officers in neighbouring areas. 

1.3 The report: 

• Summarises the current legislative framework for CAs and EPBs; 

• Outlines the current pattern of CAs, the powers available to them, the areas 

which are publicly exploring the establishment of a CA or EPB and policy 

commitment by the major political parties; 

• Summarises the appetite for exploring these issues in Gloucestershire and 

issues which need to be taken into account in considering how to proceed; 

• Recommends a number of next steps. 

1.4 It is interesting to note that one of the recommendations in the report of the recent LGA 

Coprorate Peer Challenge of Stroud District Council was that the council should “play a 

leading role in discussions with partners across Gloucestershire about what greater 

devolution to local government could mean in practice and how to take advantage of this.” 

 

  

                                                           

1
 Including two House of Commons Library Standard Notes on CAs and Devolution to local 

government (SN/PC/07029 December 2014 abd SN/PC/06649 January 2015) 

Page 30



 

iii 

2 CAs and ESBs: The legislation 

2.1 Much of the debate and discussion about combined authorities (CAs) blurs the difference 

between them and economic prosperity boards (EPBs). Many people talk about CAs when 

what they actually mean is an EPB. It is therefore important to have a good understanding of 

the relevant legislation. 

2.2 The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 provides for the 

establishment of CAs and EPBs. Both types of authority are established by a Parliamentary 

Statutory Instrument introduced by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 

Government at the request of the local authorities in the area concerned. Before making 

such a request the local authorities must to carry out a governance review to demonastrate 

the added value of the CA or EPB. 

2.3 The objective of an EPB is to improve the economic conditions of the area concerned by 

improving the way in which statutory functions relating to economic development and 

regeneration are used. A CA combines that objective with action to improve the 

effectiveness and efficiency of transport in the area through the improved use of local 

government’s statutory transport functions, including the functions of an Integrated 

Transport Authority and Passenger Transport Executive. 

2.4 The powers avaibale to EPBs and CAs were enhanced by the Localism Act 2011 in two ways: 

• It gave them a version of the general power of competence available to all 

councils; 

• It enables the Secretary of State devolve further powers to a CA by a 

Parliamentary Statuory Instrument. 

2.5 The current government is commited to introducing legislation enabling the creation of the 

role of directly elected mayor at an EPB/CA level. This legislation will not be introduced until 

after the forthcoming general election. In the meantime the government plans to amend the 

order which set up the Greater Manchester CA to create an 11
th

 member (in addition to the 

10 council leaders) who would be the chair of the authority and in effect interim mayor. 

2.6 Finally, at the time of writing, the government was consulting
2
 on a number of changes to 

the rules governing the formation of an EPB, most notably: 

• To allow councils which are not immediately adjacent to each other to form 

an EPB or CA; 

• To allow a county council to delegate functions to a CA or EPB covering a 

part of its area. 

                                                           

2
 The closing date for consultation was 26 January 2015 

Page 31



 

iv 

2.7 In essence the core difference between EPBs/CAs and a joint committee of the type that 

Gloucestershire has already established is that the former are creatures of Parliament and 

therefore have a robustness and stability which joint committees lack – hence the 

government’s preparedness to devolve powers and resources to them (a topic which is 

explored in more detail in the next section). 

Page 32



 

v 

3 CAs today: location and powers 

3.1 At the time of writing no EPBs have been established. Five CAs have been set up covering: 

Greater Manchester, Sheffield City Region, West Yorkshire, Liverpool City Region and the 

North East. The core membership of these authorities comprises the councils in the former 

metropolitan areas, but Halton is a member of the Liverpool City Region CA, York is an 

“associate member” of the West Yorkshire CA and the North East CA covers the same area 

as the NE LEP. 

3.2 The House of Commons note on CAs quotes media reports that the following places are 

conisdering forming a CA: 

• Derbyshire, including Derby City Council; 

• Nottinghamshire, including Nottingham City; 

• Lancashire, including Blackburn with Darwen and Blackpool; 

• Tees Valley; 

• Birmingham and the Black Country (and possibly Solihull and Warwickshire); 

• North West London; 

• Greater Bristol; 

• PUSH (Southhampton, Portsmouth, Isle of Wight and adjacent urban areas); 

• Oxfordshire, Buckinghamshire and Northamptonshire. 

3.3 A important driver of the current interest in CAs is the government’s commitment to 

devolving powers and resources to them, a commitment which is broadly shared by all the 

major political parties. The boxes below set out the additional powers devolved to the 

Greater Manchester and Sheffield City Region CAs and, prospectively, to the proposed 

Greater Manchester Mayor. They demonstrate the emphasis the government is placing on 

governance: Sheffield, which has not agreed to establish a directly elected Mayor, has not 

had and fiscal powers devolved to it. It is also significant that the scope of the agreement 

with Greater Manchester goes beyond the economy and transport to include health and 

social care and police and crime. 

Additional powers devolved to Greater Manchester CA  
• Deevolved business support budgets: Growth Accelerator, Manufacturing 

Advice Service and UKTI Export Support; 

• Power to restructure further education and control of the Apprenticeship 

Grant for Employers; 

• Joiny commissioning of next stage of the Work Programme with DWP; 

• Opportunity to plan integration of health and social care. 

 

Page 33



 

vi 

Proposed powers to be devolved to a Greater Manchester Mayor 
• Consolidated multi-year transport budget; 

• Responsbility for franchised bus services, railway stations and “smart 

ticketing”; 

• 10 year £300m housing investment fund; 

• Power to produce a statutory spatial strategy (similar to the power of the 

Mayor of London) 

• An enhanced business rate “earn back” agreement; 

• Elected Mayor to become the Police and Crime Commissioner. 

 

Additional powers devolved to Sheffield City Region CA 
• Majority of the Adult Skills budget; 

• Opportunity to introduce “Oyster-style” smart ticketing; 

• Consultation with DWP on joint commissioning of next phase of the Work 

Programme (from 2017); 

• Close working with UKTI and devolved spending on business support; 

• Joint decision-making with Government on disposal or regeneration of 

public sector assets and land. 

 

The main political parties support greater devolution of powers to a local level and envisage 

a greater role for LEPs and CAs. The Labour Party, for example, has published a review of 

DCLG in which it said it would devolve £30 billion of funding over five years to city and 

county regions.
3
 It has also referred to: 

• An English Devolution Act covering powers such as transport, housing, business 

support, skills and employment support; 

• Devolving 100% of business rate to CAs; 

• Passing funding for further education to local authorities; 

• Giving city and county regions and LEPs grreater control over skills budgets and the 

work programme. 

Labour statements have also referred to a requirement that areas introduce “stronger 

political leadership” in order to draw down these powers. 

  

                                                           

3
 Zero Based Review No3: A New Deal for CLG (Labour Party 2014). 

Page 34



 

vii 

4 Devolution, CAs and EPBs: the appetite 

in Gloucestershire 

4.1 The recent LGA peer challenge of Stroud District Council recommended that the council 

should “take a leading role with partners in the developing debate across Gloucestershire 

around devolution of responsibility and resources as county areas seek to access the 

freedoms and responsibilities that city regions are now agreeing with government.” 

4.2 This work has explored the extent to this there is an appetite for that debate and 

subsequent action across the county. There is a spectrum of opinion ranging from those who 

are keen to seize what they see as an important opportunity through to those who are 

sceptical about both the substance of the government’s commitment to devolution and the 

need for any governance changes in order to take advantage of that offer. Everybody 

stresses the importance of being clear what the question is to which a CA or EPM might be 

the answer – in other words establishing clarity about what Gloucestershire is seeking to 

achieve is a key first step. 

4.3 Those who are most enthusiastic about the opportunities presented by a CA or EPB refer to 

the skills area as one in which the new body could add most value. There is a view, for 

example, that the opportunties presented by devolved funding in this area would 

significantly increase businesses willingness to engage in this issue and help to create a 

genuinely employer-led skills offer. It would also add more traction to the interface with the 

FE sector in the county. 

4.4 Developments in neighbouring areas do have implications for Gloucestershire. As noted in 

paragraph 3.2 discussions about possible CAs covering Greater Bristol and Oxfordshire, 

Buckinghamshire and Northamptonshire have been reported in the media. It is also known 

that the inclusion of three Worcestershire disticts in the Greater Birmingham and Solihill LEP 

and the proposed creation of a Black Country and Birmingham LEP (potentially including 

Solihull, Coventry and the districts) means that this is a live topic in Worcestershire. There 

are also other private discussions taking place in other areas adjoining Gloucestershire.  

4.5 In this context it is important to note that many of the people interviewed for this work 

referred to important  economic and transport links between their part of the county and  

neighbouring areas. For most people the centre of gravity in terms of economic links is 

within Gloucestershire, but the fact is that none of the areas referred to above as 

considering a CA is restricted to a single county area (as a minimum they comprise a county 

and a unitary council). 

4.6 Another issue raised during the course of this work was that any consideration of 

establishing a CA or EPB explore whether doing so could tackle the perception that the 

county is not making the most of the combined Cheltenham/Gloucester urban area. With a 

population of almost a quarter of a million people it is seen be some to be a significant, 

under-exploited economic asset. 

Page 35



 

viii 

4.7 In summary, on the basis of this work there seems to be a “centre of gravity” around the 

following propositions: 

• It is early days in terms of the new joint committee, but it is beginning to 

work effectively and is enabling closer collaboration between the councils in 

the county and between them and the LEP; 

• Many people have an appetite for deeper collaboration – where that will 

benefit the county - and are keen that this should build on the work of the 

joint committee; 

• In order to reach a view about what next steps may be appropriate it is 

important to be clear about Gloucestershire’s vision and ambition and the 

extent to which devolution from Government and more robust governance 

arrangements are necessary to achieve that vision; 

• Everybody is keen to have a better understanding of what CAs and EPBs are 

and what powers might be devolved to them. 

  

Page 36



 

ix 

5 Next steps 

5.1 In the light of this work it is recommended that the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint 

Committee should agree to lead the debate called for in the LGA Stroud Peer Challenge 

Report about what greater devolution to local government in Gloucestershire could mean in 

practice and how to take advantage of this.  

5.2 As part of that process the Joint Committee should: 

• Use this note as the basis for a briefing session on CAs, EPBs and the 

freedoms and flexibilities that are on offer to them; 

• Initiate a crisp process to refresh the Gloucestershire’s vision and ambition; 

• Review the extent to which devolved powers and responsbilities (and 

associated governance structures) are necessary to achieve that vision; 

• Develop the case for the devolution of powers and responsbilities on skills 

funding and planning; 

• Maintain a dialogue with neighbouring areas on their thinking. 

5.3 It is also recommended that as part of this work the Joint Committee should consider the 

questions of geographical scale referred to above and in particular whether it should be 

thinking about: 

• A wider area than Gloucestershire; 

or 

• A model which focuses on part of the county (which would be possible under the 

relaxations referred to in paragraph 2.6), such as the core urban area. 

5.4 Given the pace of developments nationally and in adjoining areas the Joint Committee may 

also wish to considering some form of “stake in the ground” to demonstrate to government, 

other councils and partners that it is actively exploring these issues. This could take the form 

of a statement on the action planned in response to this report. 

  

Page 37



 

 

 

 

 

 

1 Naoroji Street, London WC1X 0GB 

020 7756 7600 

 

151 West George Street, Glasgow G2 2JJ 

01904 567 381 

 

www.sharedintelligence.net 

solutions@sharedintelligence.net    

Page 38


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) Updates
	Agenda item 4 SEP AF Project Application Process Flow Chart
	Agenda item 4 GFirst LEP Growth Deal Implementation Plan

	5 Project Pipeline development process
	7 Combined Authority/ Economic Prosperity Board

